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FiscAL YEAR 2013

ANNUAL REPORT
OF THE

MASSACHUSETTS
STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

BACKGROUND

The Massachusetts State College Building Authority (the Authority) is a public instrumentality of
the Commonwealth charged with financing, designing, constructing, and overseeing the
management of revenue-funded facilities — housing, dining, athletic, parking, and other student
activity facilities — for the nine state universities: Bridgewater, Fitchburg, Framingham, Salem,
Westfield, and Worcester State Universities, Massachusetts College of Art and Design,
Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts, and Massachusetts Maritime Academy. Recent
amendments to the enabling legislation expand the mission of the Authority to include the
fifteen community colleges, which are: Berkshire, Bristol, Bunker Hill, Cape Cod, Greenfield,
Holyoke, Massachusetts Bay, Massasoit, Middlesex, Mount Wachusett, North Shore, Northern
Essex, Quinsigamond, Roxbury, and Springfield Technical. Another recent change to the
legislation enables the Authority to finance certain academic facility projects located at the
state universities and community colleges.

For the academic year 2012/2013, approximately 15,000 students reside in the 43 residential
complexes owned by the Authority on state university campuses; these residential facilities
house approximately thirty-seven percent of full-time undergraduate students and comprise
about 4 million square feet of space in approximately 98 separate structures on the nine state
university campuses. In addition, the Authority owns two parking structures that provide spaces
for 1,385 vehicles.

HISTORY AND PURPOSE

The institutions now known as the Massachusetts state universities were established in the
mid-nineteenth century, essentially to provide two-year training for teachers for the emerging
system of public education in America. By the mid-twentieth century, these institutions had
evolved into more broadly-based, comprehensive, four-year baccalaureate degree-granting
universities. The surge in population following World War Il, coupled with the greater role that
advanced academic attainment played in the post-war economy, contributed to substantial
growth in enrollment in higher education. These combined trends greatly increased the
demand for campus housing and the attendant dining and student activity facilities on college
campuses in Massachusetts and throughout the country. Further, on-campus housing tends to
improve the ability of the universities to recruit and to retain students. Students who live on
campus persist towards graduation faster than those students who have not had this
opportunity.
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The Authority was established by the Legislature on September 16, 1963 to serve the students
at the nine state universities by providing residential, dining, parking, athletic, cultural,
healthcare, and other revenue-funded facilities. Total enrollment continues to increase at the
state universities. This, combined with the desire to house a larger percentage of students on
campus, to recruit from a larger geographic area, and to improve student activity facilities
(dining, retail, athletic, and parking) creates steady demand for the services provided by the
Authority today.

The community college system in Massachusetts is the result of a 1958 study of access to
higher education. The fifteen community colleges offer an array of programs leading to
certificates and associate degrees as well as a variety of vocational programs. To date, the
Authority has not financed a community college project. The Authority is working with the
Department of Higher Education and the campuses to understand the demand for Authority
services and the financial capacity of the community colleges to undertake projects that could
be implemented by the Authority.
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FUNDING

The Authority does not receive any appropriations from the Commonwealth. All revenues to
support debt issued to fund facility design and construction, annual operations, and reserves
are derived from the rents and fees paid by students for the use of these facilities and services.
In 1998, legislation was enacted to permit the Authority to issue revenue bonds without the
general obligation guarantee of the Commonwealth; this has provided the Authority with the
ability to issue bonds based upon the facility requirements of the campuses and the availability
of revenues sufficient to fund all project costs. The Authority is rated Aa2 by Moody’s Investors
Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services. A listing of the credit ratings of
Massachusetts higher education institutions is located in Appendix A.

PROJECT DELIVERY

In 1999 and 2004, legislation was enacted to permit the Authority to utilize an alternate means
of procurement for design, construction management, and construction services to improve the
quality and to reduce the time and cost of delivering new and renovated facilities. The design
and construction procurement methodology of the Authority is considered exemplary in the
public sector in its ability to provide high-quality, cost-effective facilities in critical timeframes
while providing for the public solicitation of architectural design and construction management
services and for the public bidding of trade contractor work.

WEYGAND HALL
BRIDGEWATER STATE UNIVERSITY
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MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS
For fiscal year 2013, significant Authority accomplishments included the following:

Residence Hall Construction and Renovation

1.

2.
3.
4

Completed 400-bed University Hall at Westfield State.

Completed 500-bed Weygand Hall at Bridgewater State.

Completed planning studies at Salem State to prepare for a major new residence hall.
Implemented facility renewal and adaption projects on six campuses consisting of roof
replacements, security and energy upgrades, heating system conversions, sprinkler, fire
alarm and life safety upgrades, HVAC improvements, interior finishes, and access
improvements.

Commissioned a solar thermal system for generating hot water for student use at Marsh
Hall in Salem.

Student Activity Facilities

1.

Continued construction of a 39,000 square foot Fitness Center addition to the O’Keefe
Center at Salem State.

Designed and constructed a 10,000 square foot wellness clinic as part of Weygand Hall
at Bridgewater State.

Completed renovations in the Tower Building for relocation of the Campus Police
Headquarters as an enabling project for MassArt’s Center for Design and Media project.
Opened the expanded and renovated fitness center in the Ely Building at Westfield
State.

Continued major upgrades to the HVAC system and roof repairs Hammond Student
Center at Fitchburg State.

Funded the campus-managed main entrance renovations to the Rondileau Campus
Center at Bridgewater State.
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The following tables list projects that were substantially complete in fiscal year 2013 and are
underway during fiscal year 2014:

ProJEcTS COMPLETED — FY 2013

Campus Building Description Budget
Weygand Hall New Housing Capacity
(500 beds) $ 62,000,000
Shea Durgin Ground Level Renovations,
Bridgewater Card Access 2,054,000
Miles DiNardo Roof Replacement 1,271,000
University Park Replace Surface Parking with
Campus Green 1,000,000
Hammond Campus
Center Addition and Renovations 25,822,000
Fitchburg Aubuchon Hall Heating System Replacement 5,222,000
Hammond Campus Roof Replacement and
Center HVAC Upgrades 5,400,000
Framingham | O'Connor Hall Planetarium Relocation 3,525,000
Tower Building Campus Police Relocation and
MassArt Renovations 3,696,000
Kennedy Building Student Center 6th Floor
Upgrades 1,300,000
MCLA Hoosac Hall New Entry, Bathroom
Renovations (27 new beds) 7,691,000
. Company 5 Renovations and Added
Maritime .
Capacity on 03 Deck 2,000,000
Peabody Hall Boiler Renovations and
Salem .
Student Room Lighting 895,000
WSC Apartments New Sprinklers and
Fire Alarm 4,020,000
. Ely Campus Center Fitness Center and
Westfield Renovations 15,270,000
University Hall New Housing Capacity
(410 beds) 50,000,000
Worcester Dowden Hall HVAC for Study Rooms 634,000
TOTAL $ 191,800,000
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PRoOJECTS UNDERWAY — FY 2014

Campus Building Description Budget
Rondileau Center Renovations and Access
Bridgewater Improvements $ 9,000,000
Woodward Hall Window Replacement 3,000,000
Hammond Campus Roof Replacement and
Center HVAC Improvements 5,400,000
Fitchburg Hammond Campus
Center Interior Renovations 11,000,000
Aubuchon Hall Summer 2013 - Bathrooms 5,298,000
McCarthy Campus Building Addition and
Center Dining Hall Expansion 4,050,000
Larned & Corrine Halls | New Electrical Switchgear
and Fire Pumps 1,600,000
Framingham | O’Connor Hall Heating System Replacement 2,980,000
Maynard Road Parking | Acquisition and Parking
Improvements 10,000,000
New Residence Hall New Housing Capacity Study
(250-300 beds) 300,000
MassArt Smith Hall Smith Hall HVAC Equipment Repair 710,000
MCLA Berkshire Towers Suite Mock-Up 350,000
Marine Dock Waterfront Protection 5,000,000
Maritime Companies 1-6 New Housing Capacity 25,295,000
Companies 1-6 Wastewater Treatment Facility 1,300,000
Gasset Center New Fitness and Recreation Center 17,462,000
Salem New Residence Hall New Housing Capacity Study
(350-400 beds) 650,000
Bowditch Hall Lighting Improvements 430,000
Westfield WSC Apartments Roofing and Window Replacement 6,450,000
Worcester Sheehan Hall New Housing and Dining Hall 60,400,000
(400 beds)
Wasylean Hall Envelope Maintenance 500,000
TOTAL $171,175,000
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STATE OF THE SYSTEM

Overview

The Authority develops and manages two different types of residence hall projects: System
projects and Campus projects. System projects are those facilities that were financed with
pooled debt — guaranteed by the Commonwealth — prior to 1999. Approximately 11,000
students reside in 82 System buildings that comprise 2.5 million gross square feet of building
space; these buildings were constructed over a period of 100 years, the oldest having been
completed in 1906. The System buildings have pooled replacement reserves. By contrast, each
Campus project is funded by revenue bonds that are secured by pledged rent and fees; these
bonds are not guaranteed by the Commonwealth. Since 2001, the Authority has completed
construction on 18 Campus projects for both new residence halls and the expansion of existing
residence halls, and two Campus projects for the construction of Authority-owned parking
facilities. For the academic year 2012/2013, approximately 3,900 students reside in Campus
residence halls which comprise 1.4 million gross square feet. In Fall 2013 Campus housing
increased by an additional 900 beds with the completion of two new residence facilities at
Bridgewater and Westfield State. Each Campus project has a separate, dedicated replacement
reserve. Over the years, the Authority has dramatically reduced the deferred maintenance in
all facilities and has renovated buildings to meet the changing needs of students and the
changing requirements of building codes and standards (e.g., life safety, accessibility, energy
conservation). The condition of the residential facilities of the Authority has resulted in
improved desirability of on-campus housing, as demonstrated in part through increased
occupancy over the past several years. The predictable schedule, quality, and funding of facility
improvement projects reduces the likelihood of substantial unanticipated projects and their
associated inconvenience and expense.

Financial Performance

The financial condition of the Authority is stable and strong. For fiscal year 2013, Authority
assessments, derived primarily from rents and fees, totaled $123.5 million, of which $70.0
million was used to pay debt service. To cover the Authority’s assessments and the annual
expense of operating the residence halls, the universities collect rents and fees from students in
accordance with the annual rent schedule prepared by the Authority and approved by the
Massachusetts Board of Higher Education. The Authority’s audited financial statements for
fiscal year 2013 are included as Appendix B.

The financial condition of the Authority is further strengthened by a series of reserves and trust
funds. The campus assessments fund annual debt service requirements, Authority operating
expenses, insurance, and deposits to reserves. During fiscal year 2013, $5 million was
deposited into the System Capital Improvement Reserve from rent revenues; this reserve is
managed by the Authority and is used to fund the renewal and adaption requirements of the
System projects. At the close of the fiscal year, the balance available in the reserve was $16.8
million. A percentage (that increases incrementally) of the prior year income of Campus
projects is deposited into the replacement reserve for each new building project. At the close of
the fiscal year these funds totaled $4.2 million, and are used specifically to fund the renewal
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requirements of Campus projects. In addition, Multipurpose and Supplemental reserves are
held totaling $6.4 million as of the close of the fiscal year.

Economic Impact

The impact of the Authority and of its projects on the Massachusetts economy is substantial.
The following table illustrates the dollar value of the direct expenditure of the Authority for
personnel, purchasing, and construction for the last three years:

ECONOMIC IMPACT OF THE AUTHORITY AND ITS PROJECTS (in $1,000,000)

Expense Type FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 | Employment
Authority Operations
and Administration S1.4 S1.5 S1.6 14
Residence Hall Operations $34.3 $36.9 $37.9 466
Construction and Maintenance* S111.5 $122.7 $187.1 935
Total $147.2 $161.1 $226.6 1,415

*Construction industry guidelines indicate that at current prevailing wage rates, every million dollars of
construction could result in the employment of approximately five workers for a full year.

UNIVERSITY HALL
WESTFIELD STATE UNIVERSITY
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Rents and Fees

For the 2012/2013 academic year (fiscal 2013), the average on-campus room rent was $6,207
per bed. To ensure affordability and full occupancy, Authority room rents are typically
maintained at or below the off-campus market rental rates in the locality served by the campus.
Regular modest increases in room rents permit the Authority to fund increases in operating
expenses (salaries and utilities), debt service expense, and a regular program of facility renewal
and renovation.

The following chart illustrates the uses of the average rent per student for the 2012/2013
academic year:

USES OF THE AVERAGE RENT ($6,207)

Res Hall
Ops/Staff: Utilities:
$1,332 (21%) $604 (10%)

Admin. & Ins:
$187 (3%)

Operations &
Maintenance:
$482 (8%)

e

Scholarship:  _—"

$119 (2%) /
Debt Service:

Contributions to $3,045 (49%)
Reserves:
$438 (7%)
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Facility Renewal

The Authority has developed a comprehensive facility renewal program to ensure that the
recurring need for reinvestment occurs on a predictable schedule that is coordinated with the
availability of funds necessary to perform this work. Typically, renewal projects include work
that is performed on a regular cycle to maintain an existing building in its present configuration
for its current use. The Facility Renewal Plan includes a schedule of

the anticipated useful life of each major building component and system and the date and
amount of the next required investment. The plan is revised annually to incorporate recently-
completed work, to validate the projected schedule for future work, and to update the unit
prices for each building assembly that is scheduled for future replacement.

One measure of facility condition is the Facility Condition Index, a higher education industry
standard that is the ratio of the value of Deferred Maintenance divided by the Current
Replacement Value of the facility [FCI| = DM/CRV]. Due to steady reinvestment in existing
facilities (System Projects) the FCI for the Authority has steadily improved over the past several

years:

FAciLITY CONDITION INDEX (System Projects)

2000 2002 | 2004 | 2006 | 2008 2010 2012
Deferred Maintenance (Sm) 61.1 49.3 39.1 22.7 15.2 13.0 10.6
Current Replacement Value (Sm) 274 293 330 374 416 464 511
Facility Condition Index 22.3% | 16.8% | 11.8% | 6.1% | 3.6% 2.8% 2.1%
Debt Management

In 1998, the Legislature empowered the Authority to issue revenue bonds that are not
guaranteed by the Commonwealth. Each bond issue is secured by the rents and fees pledged by
the universities and paid by the students who benefit from these projects. Further security is
provided by a campus pledge of twenty-five percent of the average annual debt service and by
a debt service reserve fund with a balance of $79.9 million as of June 30, 2013. Through the
close of fiscal year 2013, the Authority has issued bonds to finance projects totaling $1.1 billion.
As detailed in the following chart, $220.2 million in bond proceeds have been used to fund
repair and renewal of existing residence halls. Bond proceeds of $658.9 million have been used
to fund the construction of new residence halls and the expansion of existing residence halls.
The remaining bond proceeds of $177.9 have been used to fund new construction, repair, and
renovation of Commonwealth-owned student activity facilities.
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The following table shows use of project funds from bond proceeds since 2000:

UsE oF PROJECT FUNDS FROM BOND PROCEEDS SINCE 2000 (Amounts in Millions)

Repair and Student
Series Renovation New Projects Activity Total
Projects Projects
1999-2000 $33.4 $58.6 $1.8 $93.8
2003A,B $19.0 $67.0 $2.1 $88.1
2004A $24.0 $32.0 $2.0 $58.0
2005A $19.0 $0.0 $14.9 $33.9
2006A $19.6 $64.1 $8.3 $92.0
2008A $32.6 $49.0 $0.8 $82.4
2009A,B,C $38.1 $180.5 $22.3 $240.9
2010A,B $12.5 $14.1 $28.3 $54.9
2012A $11.5 $113.0 $34.0 $158.5
2012C $10.5 $80.6 $63.5 $154.6
Project Fund Total $220.2 $658.9 $177.9 $1,057.0

Enrollment
Enrollment at the state universities continues to increase. The following chart illustrates the
enrollment of full-time undergraduate students at each state university:

STATE UNIVERSITY ENROLLMENT (Fall Data)

Campus 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012
Bridgewater State 7,399 7,471 8,117 8,911 9,201
Fitchburg State 3,622 3,903 4,421 4,503 4,368
Framingham State 4,207 4,169 4,237 4,288 4,909
MA College of Art and Design 1,482 1,543 1,803 1,956 1,902
MA College of Liberal Arts 1,592 1,765 1,589 1,715 1,601
MA Maritime Academy 984 1,092 1,221 1,297 1,434
Salem State 6,422 7,224 7,279 7,438 7,207
Westfield State 4,090 4,630 4,863 5,174 5,352
Worcester State 3,794 3,939 4,004 4,350 4,770
Total 33,592 35,736 37,535 39,630 40,744
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Residence Hall Occupancy
Occupancy in the residence halls on each campus is strong and growing. As shown on the
following table, occupancy at several of the state universities remains over 100%:

RESIDENCE HALL OccupANCY (Annual Data)

Campus 1999 | 2001 | 2003 | 2005 | 2007 | 2009 | 2011 | 2013
Bridgewater State 104% | 106% | 105% | 105% | 104% | 104% | 100% | 99%
Fitchburg State 70% | 78% | 95% | 100% | 102% | 103% | 104% | 101%
Framingham State 88% | 93% | 105% | 100% | 100% | 101% | 104% | 100%

MA College of Art & Design| 105% | 103% | 100% | 99% [ 101% | 100% | 99% | 99%
MA College of Liberal Arts [ 60% | 68% | 81% | 88% | 95% | 88% | 98% | 91%

MA Maritime Academy 76% | 81% | 93% | 96% | 103% | 94% | 103% | 108%
Salem State 101% | 102% | 105% | 100% | 101% | 104% | 93% | 107%
Westfield State 97% | 103% | 109% | 109% | 108% | 107% | 104% | 101%
Worcester State 99% | 103% | 100% | 96% | 101% | 102% | 99% | 102%
Average 88% | 93% | 101% | 99% | 103% | 102% | 101% | 101%

Housing Financial Aid

The Authority makes a concerted effort to maintain rent levels at or below comparable rents in
the market served by each campus. By statute, the fees, rents, and charges assessed by the
Authority must provide sufficient revenue to pay the cost of project debt service, maintenance,
repair, operations, and reserves. There is a range of types and costs of Authority projects, to
appeal to a range of student interests and resources. To further improve the affordability of its
projects, the Authority established a housing financial aid program in 2005. In fiscal year 2013,
this program provided $2 million that is redistributed by the financial aid offices of the nine
state universities to complement the financial aid package for residential students. In fiscal
2013, approximately 13% of students received 16% of their housing costs through this program.

Strategic Planning

Every other year, the Authority updates its Strategic Plan to determine the long term demand
for student housing facilities at the nine state university campuses. This plan considers the
latest available enrollment data and projections prepared by the Department of Higher
Education. In the past, the goal was to provide, on average, housing for fifty percent of the full-
time undergraduate students in the state university system; this would provide capacity for two
years of housing during a students’ four-year undergraduate experience. The present goal is to
identify specific housing targets to support the sustained enrollment for each campus. In
addition to a greater number of total students, the percentage of full-time undergraduate
students — the students most likely to avail themselves of housing opportunities — increased
from 54% to 65% of total headcount since 2000. Further, despite an increase of 5,300 new
beds from academic years 1999/2000 to 2013/2014, system-wide occupancy in fall 2013 was
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101.7% of design occupancy. The Authority will continue to update its Strategic Plan on a
biennial basis to ensure that demand is sufficient for future projects and to effectively manage
occupancy of existing facilities.

PARKING STRUCTURE
BRIDGEWATER STATE UNIVERSITY
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APPENDIX A
Moody’s Investors Services

Massachusetts College and University Ratings
as of June 30, 2013

Institution Rating
Amherst College Aaa
Harvard University Aaa
Massachusetts Institute of Technology Aaa
Smith College Aal
Wellesley College Aal
Williams College Aal
Massachusetts State College Building Authority Aa2
Tufts University Aa2
University of Massachusetts Building Authority Aa2
Boston College Aa3
College of the Holy Cross Aa3
Mount Holyoke College Aa3
Boston University Al
Brandeis College Al
Worcester Polytechnic Institute Al
Berklee College of Music A2
Franklin W. Olin College of Engineering A2
Clark University A2
MA College of Pharmacy and Health Sciences A2
Northeastern University A2
Stonehill College A2
Wheaton College A2
Babson College A3
Bentley College A3
Emmanuel College Baal
New England Conservatory Baal
Simmons College Baal
Springfield College Baal
Wentworth Institute of Technology Baal
Hampshire College Baa2
Suffolk University Baa2
Merrimack College Baa3
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APPENDIX B

FY 2013 Audited Financial Statements
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Unaudited

The following discussion and analysis provides management’s overview of the financial position
of the Massachusetts State College Building Authority (the Authority) as of June 30, 2013 and
2012, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended. This
management’s discussion and analysis is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with the
Authority’s audited financial statements and notes, which are attached hereto.

Introduction

The Authority was created pursuant to Chapter 703 of the Acts of 1963 (the Act) of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts {the Commonwealth), as amended, as a body politic and
corporate and a public instrumentality to finance, design, and construct residence facilities,
dining commons, parking, athletic, cultural, and other student activity facilities primarily for use
by students, staff and their dependents of state colleges.  Such facilities may be provided in
collaboration with and for joint use by other agencies, boards, commissions, or authorities of the
Commonwealth. The Act was amended in 2010 to change the definition of state college to “any
of the public institutions of higher education in the state university segment or the community
college segment”. The state university segment of the public institutions of higher education
includes the following institutions: Bridgewater, Fitchburg, Framingham, Salem, Westfield, and
Worcester State Universities, Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts (MCLA), Massachusetts
College of Art and Design (MassArt), and Massachusetts Maritime Academy (Mass Maritime).
The community college segment includes the following institutions: Berkshire, Bristol, Bunker
Hill, Cape Cod, Greenfield, Holyoke, Massachusetts Bay, Massasoit, Middlesex, Mount
Wachusett, North Shore, Northemn Essex, Quinsigamond, Roxbury, and Springfield Technical
Community Colleges. As of June 30, 2013, the Authority has not financed or managed any
project for any of the 15 community colleges.

Pursuant to the Act and a Contract for Financial Assistance, Management and Services between
the Commonwealth acting by and through the Board of Higher Education (BHE) (the Contract),
the Authority annually sets and assesses rents and fees sufficient to provide for the payment of
all costs of its facilities, including maintenance, operation, administration, reserves and to pay
debt service on revenue bonds issued to finance its projects. The Authority receives no direct
appropriation from the Commonwealth. Approximately 15,000 students reside in the 43
residential complexes owned by the Authority. These facilities house over one-third of full-time
undergraduate students and comprise about 4.3 million square feet of space in approximately 96
separate structures on the nine state university campuses.

The universities certify residence hall occupancy to the Authority and to the Commonwealth’s
Department of Higher Education on a semi-annual basis. For the academic year 2012/13, the



number of students housed in on-campus housing owned by the Authority was 101% of design

occupancy.

The following table shows average annual residence hall occupancy every other year from the
2000/01 through 2012/13 academic years (and includes 2011/12 academic year).

Residence Halls Occupancy Table

Acndemic Years
Institution 2000001 2002703 200405 @ 2006/07 @ 200809 201041 2 200142 2002413
Bridgewater 106.0% 105.0% 105.0% 104.2% 104.5% 99.7% 99.6% 98.9%
Fitchburg 78.0% 95.0% 100.0% 101.7% 102.5% 103.8% 100.2% 100.8%
Framingham 93.0% 105.0% 100.0% 99.7% 101.0% 103.9% 99 8% 100.3%
Mass. College of Ant & Design 103.0% 100.0% 99.0% 101.4% 99.8% 99.4% 99.6% 99 3%
Mass. College of Liberal Arts 68.0% 81.0% 88.0% 94.7% 87.9% 97.5% 93.8% 91.1%
Mass. Maritime Academy Bl1.0% 93.0% 96.0% 103.4% 94.3% 102.9% 106.0% 107.9%
Salem 102.0% 105.0% 100.0% 100.6% 104.2% 93.5% 102.3% 106.7%
Westfield 103.0% 109.0% 109.0% 108.3% 107.2% 104.3% 105.8% 101.1%
Worcester 0% 100,0% 96.0% 100.6% 102,0%% 99.1% 102.5% 10].9%
Average Occupancy 93.0% 101.0% 99.0% 102.5% 100.8% 100.6% 101.4% 101.0%

As required by statute, the offices of the Authority are located in Boston, Massachusetts. The
nine board members of the Authority are appointed by the Governor; three members must be
appointive members of the Commonwealth’s Board of Higher Education.

Economic Factors

The seasonally adjusted unemployment rate for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts from
which the state colleges primarily draw students increased to 7.0% at June 30, 2013 as compared
to 6.0% at June 30, 2012. This compares to a national rate of 7.6% in 2013 and 8.2%in 2012,

Historically, in times of economic uncertainty, the state colleges that the Authority serves
experience increases in their enrollments as high school graduates and unemployed and
underemployed workers seek to update and upgrade their skills. The Authority cannot predict the
extent to which enrollment may vary in the current environment.

In fiscal year 2013, the Authority issued bonds at historically low rates to generate new money
for construction projects. The Authority continued to strive to offer affordable residence options
for students. Student rent for academic year 2012/13 on Authority residence facilities compared
favorably to both regional private and other public institutions. Authority rents were the sixth
lowest compared to 22 private regional institutions and third lowest when compared to seven
regional public institutions.



Financial Statements

The Authority’s financial statements {pages 3-5 of this report) have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The Statement of Net Position (Deficiency in Net Position) presents assets and deferred outflows
of resources, less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (of which there are none), with the
residual balance being reported as net position (deficiency in net position). Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information
showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the fiscal year presented. All changes
in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., the
payment for accrued compensated absences, or the receipt of amounts due from Universities and
others for services rendered).

The Statement of Cash Flows is reported on the direct method. The direct method of cash flow
reporting portrays net cash flows from operations as major classes of operating receipts (e.g.,
income from contracts for financial assistance, management and services) and disbursements
(e.g., cash paid to employees, contractors, consultants, or vendors for services). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements 34 and 35 require this method to
be used.

The notes to the financial statements describe significant accounting policies adopted by the
Authority and provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the financial statements.

Financial Highlights

o Total assets of the Authority grew from $1.0 billion to $1.2 billion at June 30, 2013,
primarily due to an increase in investments to Authority-owned residence halls and an
increase in accounts receivable reflecting major renovation and new construction projects on
the university-owned student activity facilities. Sources of funds for these projects include
bond funds and capital improvement reserve funds.

o Capital assets grew by $94.6 million due primarily to the continuation, completion, and
commencement of major construction projects on Authority-owned residence halls. As of
June 30, 2013, the Authority had projects totaling $134.4 million underway and in process
attributable primarily to new residence halls under construction at Bridgewater, Westfield,
and Worcester State Universities. The Authority completed projects for each of the nine state
universities totaling $30.9 million. Details of capital assets are provided on pages x - xi.
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o Fiscal year 2013 activity also included major renovations and new construction projects on
university-owned student activity facilities. Completed student activity facilities projects
include mechanical system, roofing and infrastructure upgrades at Hammond Campus Center
at Fitchburg State, the reconstruction of a portion of the Kennedy Campus Center and Public
Safety Department relocation at MassArt, and the construction of a wellness center and
renovations to the Ely Campus Center at Westfield State. Major projects underway include
the continuation of interior improvements and upgrades in Hammond Campus Center at
Fitchburg State, an upgrade and expansion of the dining areas in the McCarthy Campus
Center at Framingham State, upgrades and improvements to the wastewater treatment facility
at Mass Maritime, and the design and construction of a 39,000 square foot addition to the
O’Keefe Center at Salem State that will house a new fitness center, basketball courts, and
lounge areas.

e Operating Revenues increased $3.6 million in fiscal year 2013 from fiscal year 2012 due to
increased assessment revenues used to fund debt obligations, Authority operations, and
deposits to capital reserves.

* In December 2012, the Authority issued $153.8 million Series 2012C Bonds at a true interest
cost of 2.69% to provide new money to finance new residential capacity at Mass Maritime, a
new residence hall and dining facility at Worcester State University, improvements to student
activity facilities at Bridgewater, Fitchburg, Framingham and Worcester State Universities,
and MCLA and Mass Maritime and renewal and adaption of residence halls at Bridgewater,
Fitchburg and Westfield State Universities and Mass Maritime.

Financial Analysis

Statements of Net Position (Deficiency in Net Position)

The largest portion of the Authority’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (such
as land, buildings, furniture and equipment) less related outstanding debt used to acquire those
assets. These assets provide on-going services to the state universities and consequently they are
not available to be used to liquidate liabilities. In fiscal year 2002, the Authority began
depreciating its capital assets in accordance with GASB Statements 34 and 35. At that time, the
initial accumulated depreciation of $81.45 million represented the depreciation on its capital
assets dating back to 1963. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth.
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Highlights — Statements of Net Position

Fiscal yvear ended June 30

2013 2012 S Change X Change
Current assets $ 106,897,415 $ 119,521,033 $ (12,623,618) (10.6%0)
Capital assets, net 751,957,559 657,341,390 94,616,169 14.4%
Other noncurtrent asselts 329714958 280,598 687 49116271 17.5%
Total assets L188569932  _L057461, 110 _131,10R,R22 12.4%
Deferred outflows of resources 30,695 287 323 3 (1.657.145) (5.1%%)
Current liabilities 94,183,457 93,724,420 459,037 0.5%
Noncurrent liabilities 1.147.325.R60 1.011,911.462 135.414,398 13.4%
Total liabilities —L241.509317 _L105635882  _135.873.435 12.3%
Deferred inflows of resources - - - 0.0%
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 405,186 1,380,597 (975,411) 70.7%
Restricted 2,231,469 2,415,383 (183,914) (7.6%)
Unrestricted {24 880,753) (196183200 __ (5,262,433} 26.8%
Deficiency in net position $_(22.244.098) § (15.822.340) $ _(6.421.758) (40.6%0)

Total assets at June 30, 2013 increased 12.4% when compared to total assets at June 30,
2012. This primarily reflects continued additions to capital assets and increased receivables
for the university-owned portions of the Series 2012C Bond issue. Cash and cash
equivalents increased by $15.0 million as a result of proceeds of the Series 2012A and 2012C
Bonds held as cash offset by continued spending of other project funds. Investments
decreased by $30.4 million as a result of purchases and maturities of investments in the
Series 2012A and 2012C Bond funds along with unrealized losses on market valuations. The
maturities of such investments were scheduled to meet the projected spending schedules of
the residence halls under construction at Bridgewater and Westfield State Universities.
Accounts receivable increased by $51.2 million as a result of the portion of Series 2012C
Bonds issued to fund university-owned projects. The increase to accounts receivable was net
of a transfer of a $1.4 million Authority-owned capital asset at MCLA to the Commonwealth,
acting by and through the Division of Capital Asset Management.

Reserves for capital improvements, multi-purpose and operating purposes as of June 30,
2013 were $27.8 million compared to $24.1 million as of June 30, 2012. Debt service
reserve funds totaled $79.9 as of June 30, 2013 compared to $83.2 million as of June 30,
2012, such decrease reflecting unrealized losses in market value. These reserves are included
in the Statements of Net Position in the cash and cash equivalents and investments
categories.

Capital assets are discussed on pages x - xi.



o Total liabilities at June 30, 2013 increased 12.3% as compared to total liabilities at June 30,
2012, due primarily to an increase in bonds payable and accrued accounts payable. Bonds
payable increased to $1.2 billion at June 30, 2013 from $1.0 billion at June 30, 2012 as a
result of the issuance of Series 2012C Bonds offset by the payment of principal on
outstanding bonds.

» University-owned student activity facilities are not carried as capital assets of the Authority.
Project funds associated with university-owned assets are carried as interagency payable
liabilities of the Authority. Debt associated with university-owned facilities is carried as
receivables due from the university. Interest payments received from the universities are
recognized as investment income by the Authority.

e Debt administration is discussed on pages xi - Xii.

e A deficiency in total net position exists due primarily to depreciation and interest expenses
exceeding operating and non-operating revenues over a period of time. The deficiency at
June 30, 2013 was $6.4 million more than the deficiency at June 30, 2012, primarily
reflecting an increase in unrealized losses on investments of $4.5 million. Pursuant to the
Authority’s investment policy, the Authority invests in highly rated securities with the intent
to preserve the principal investment. These investments are subject to fluctuations in market
value from year to year, but the Authority’s intent is to hold these investments to maturity for
use in paying debt obligations. The Authority’s investment in capital assets is reported net of
related debt and depreciation (a non-cash operating expense). Funds needed to repay debt
and to replace or renew capital assets are provided from operating revenues, including rent,
fees and charges. The change in net position for the year ended June 30, 2013 excluding
depreciation was an increase in net position of $23.5 million.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Authority revenue is primarily derived from assessments of state university residence hall rents
and student activity fees pursuant to the Contract, in which the BHE commits the state
universities to meet the statutory and financial obligations related to the projects. The
assessments provide the revenue needed to fund annual debt service requirements associated
with bonds issued to finance capital projects, reserve deposits, insurance premiums, and
Authority operating expenses.
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Comparison of Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

Fiscal year ended June 30

2013 2012 3 Change % Change
Total operating revenues £ 59,688,197 § 56,084,274 § 3,603,923 6.4%
Total operating expenscs — 32672238 _31.119276 __1.352.962 5.0%
Operating income 27,015,959 24,964,998 2,050,961 8.2%
Nonoperating expenses, net (33.437.717 (21,326213) (12.111.504) 56.8%
Increase (decrease) in net position {6,421,758) 3,638,785 (10,060,543) (276.5%)
Net position - beginning of the ycar (15822340 _ (19461125 ___ 3.638,785 18.7%
Net position - end of the year ) !22.244.098) $ { 15,822,340y § !6.421.758) (40.6%)

e Operating revenues grew from $56.1 million at June 30, 2012 to $59.7 million at June 30,
2013, due primarily to a $3.6 million increase in assessment revenues.

e Other revenue sources include investment income on project funds and reserves and transfers
from state universities in support of capital projects, a Federal grant for debt service ending
in fiscal year 2013, and interest subsidy from the U.S. Treasury relating to the Authority’s
outstanding Build America Bonds. The 56.8% increase in non-operating expenses primarily
reflects unrealized losses on investments as of June 30, 2013 and increased interest expense
on outstanding bonds.

The charts below compare total revenue for fiscal year 2013 with fiscal year 2012.
Summary of Total Revenue

2013 2012

B Assessment Income

1693% __
# Investment Income

= Transfers from
Universities

B Federal Grants for Debt
Service

B Other Miscellaneous
Sources

74.14%

85.53%
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Operating expenses include depreciation, maintenance and renewal and adaption to capital
assets and operating expenses associated with Authority operations.

In fiscal year 2013, depreciation expense was $29.9 million as compared to $28.6 million in
fiscal year 2012. The increase in depreciation expense of $1.3 million is due to the additional
depreciable assets brought into use in fiscal year 2013, including major improvements and
renewal and adaption at several campuses.

Approximately 7% of fiscal year 2013 operating expenses were for maintenance costs and
Authority operating expenses, including property and liability insurance premium expenses.
The Authority’s operating expenses increased $140,300 from fiscal year 2013 compared to
2012, due primarily to an increase in general legal services.

The primary components of net non-operating revenues (expenses) are annual interest
expense incurred on the Authority’s debt obligations, less investment income used to offset
debt service requirements. Interest expense increased by 8.9% in fiscal year 2013 compared
to 2012 due primarily to increased interest payments associated with the Series 2009B and
2012A Bonds offset by increased premium amortization associated with the Series 2012A,
2012B, and 2012C Bonds. Net investment income decreased from $12.6 million in fiscal
year 2012 to $3.0 million in fiscal year 2013, due to unrealized losses on investments as of
June 30, 2013.

Net non-operating expenses at June 30, 2013 were $33.4 million compared to $21.3 million
at June 30, 2012. The change results primarily from decreased net investment income, a
capital asset transfer to the Commonwealth, and increased interest expense on debt offset by
decreased bond issuance expense and increased transfers from state universities,

The charts below compare total expenses, excluding interest expense, for fiscal year 2013 with

fiscal year 2012.
Summary of Expenses (excluding Interest Expense)
2013 2012
o
B Depreciation &
4.45%
# Authority operating
expenses
= Maintenance costs

B Bond issuance costs

B Other expenses

87.03% 85.97%
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Statements of Cash Flows

Authority cash in-flows are primarily generated from assessments received from the universities
and proceeds from bond issuances. Cash out-flows are primarily from continued payments for
additions to Authority capital assets, payments for additions to university-owned assets, and
payment of principal and interest on Authority debt.

Highlights — Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal year ended June 30

2013 202

Cash received from operations $ 59,587,821 £ 56,084,385
Cash expended for operations {3.390.939) (2.471.344)

Net cash provided by operations 56,196,882 53,613,041
Net cash provided by (used) in capital and related financing activities (70,229,142) 8,580,151
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 29,014,317 (99,240.088)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14,982,057 (37,046,896)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 84505415 121,552 311
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 99487472 § 84505415

¢ Cash and cash equivalents were $99.5 million at June 30, 2013 compared to $84.5 million at
June 30, 2012. This $!5.0 million increase is due primarily to receipt of proceeds of the
2012C Bonds, the net cash provided by the purchase and maturity of certain project fund
investments, and funds held for the benefit of the state universities offset by payments for
capital assets of the Authority and state universities.

¢ Net cash provided by operations exceeded the cash expended for operations. The $3.7
million increase in cash received from assessments was a result of higher residence facility
revenue. The increase in cash expended for operations is primarily due to insurance
premiums for fiscal year 2014 prepaid in 2013, and increased payments for miscellaneous
expenses.

e Net cash used in capital and related financing activities was $70.2 million in fiscal year 2013
compared to net cash provided by capital and related financing activities of $8.6 million in
fiscal year 2012. The net change between years is primarily attributable to increased
payments for both Authority and University-owned assets which increased by $26.9 and
$36.6 million, respectively.

¢ Net cash provided by investing activities was $29.0 million in fiscal year 2013 compared to
net cash used in investing activities of $99.2 million in fiscal year 2012 due primarily to the
maturity of investments for the Series 2012A Bonds proceeds offset in part by the purchase
of investments with the Series 2012C Bonds proceeds.



Capital Assets

The Authority’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2013 was $752.0 million net of
accumulated depreciation compared to $657.3 million as of June 30, 2012. Capital assets
include land, buildings and improvements thereon, furnishings and equipment. Capital assets
comprised approximately 63% of total assets at June 30, 2013 compared to approximately 62%
at June 30, 2012. During the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority had net
additions to capital assets of $124.5 million and $90.9 million, respectively, in constructing new
assets and improvements on assets already in service, inclusive of construction in progress. The
major components of Capital Assets are presented below.

¢ Construction in progress represents the balance of additions to Authority assets for projects
currently underway. The construction in progress balance was $134.4 million at June 30,
2013 compared to $43.0 million at June 30, 2012. The $91.4 million increase in construction
in progress was due primarily to the nearly completed new residence halls at Bridgewater and
Westfield State Universities with additions at June 30, 2013 of $59.3 million and $48.1
million, respectively.

e The buildings and improvements balance was $849.9 million at June 30, 2013 compared to
$819.0 million at June 30, 2012. The $30.9 million increase in buildings and improvements
was due primarily to the completion and change in classification of several repair and
renewal projects from construction in progress during fiscal year 2013. These projects
included improvements to bathrooms, student rooms, and waterproofing totaling $2.1 million
in Shea Durgin Hall and roof replacement at Miles DiNardo Hall totaling $1.34 million both
at Bridgewater State University. Major building component and system upgrades totaling
$5.1 million were completed in Aubuchon Hall at Fitchburg State University, Conversions
to academic and administrative functions, and relocation of a Planetarium totaling $3.9
million were completed in O’Connor Hall at Framingham State University. The addition of
27 new student beds, improvements to lounges and other public space, and improvements to
accessibility totaling $7.4 million were completed in Hoosac Hall at the MCLA. Bathroom
improvements totaling $1.6 million were completed in Company 5 at Mass Maritime. In
addition, exterior upgrades and new security access totaling $3.7 million were completed in
the Apartments at Westfield State University. In addition, capital improvement reserves
were used to complete a $633,000 HVAC project at Dowden Hall and $895,000 boilers and
lighting projects at Peabody Hall at Worcester and Salem State Universities, respectively.

o The furnishings and equipment balance was $42.7 million at June 30, 2013 compared to
$40.8 million at June 30, 2012. The $1.9 million increase in furnishings and equipment was
attributable to purchases across the system.

e Land was valued at $4.2 million at June 30, 2013 compared to $3.8 million at June 30, 2012
reflecting the purchase of two parcels in Framingham. These purchases are part of a larger
on-going project to purchase and develop surface parking at Framingham State University.

The Authority has entered into various commitments for the purchase of equipment, construction
of certain facilities and other improvements relating to both Authority assets and university-
owned assets, As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, such commitments were
approximately $69.5 million and $43.0 million.



Additions to university-owned facilities have no effect on capital assets. Project funds associated
with university-owned assets are held as interagency payable liabilities of the Authority. As
university-owned asset project funds are spent the corresponding payable balances are reduced
accordingly.

Debt Administration

The Act authorizes the Authority to issue bonds to finance the design and construction of
residence facilities, dining commons, parking, athletic, cultural, and other student activity
facilities at the state colleges. These bonds are special obligations of the Authority payable
solely from revenues and certain pledged funds provided under the provisions of the Act, the
Contract and the Trust Agreement between the Authority and trustee. Annually, the Authority
collects assessments from each state college in amounts sufficient for the payment of, among
other things, the debt service on the Authority’s bonds. These assessments are primarily derived
from the rents and fees on the Authority’s facilities, and on university-owned facilities financed
by the Authority, as annually set by the Authority. As additional security for the Authority’s
bonds, the Act and the Contract provide for an intercept of legislative appropriations to the state
colleges, if the Authority otherwise lacks sufficient funds to pay debt service. This intercept
mechanism was clarified and streamlined by amendments to the Act in 2009 and 2011 and the
Contract was amended to conform to the statutory changes.

As of June 30, 2013, the Authority had $1.1 billion in par outstanding bonds compared to $968.4
million at June 30, 2012. These bond obligations also carried unamortized premium balances of
$68.3 and $63.0 million, respectively as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, The $137.7 million increase
is attributable to the issuance of $153.8 million in Series 2012C Bonds and offset by principal
payments made during the fiscal year. All of the outstanding bonds carry fixed interest rates
payable semi-annually on May and November 1¥. Principal is payable annually on May 1%,
with a final maturity of 2049. The Authority’s outstanding debt has no associated interest rate
exchange agreements. Of the amount outstanding, $114.3 million are taxable Build America
Bonds for which the Authority receives a 35% interest rate subsidy directly from the U.S.
Treasury. In fiscal year 2013, a portion of the Authority’s interest rate subsidy was reduced due
to sequestration. The balance of the outstanding bonds is tax-exempt. $22.0 million of the par
outstanding bonds are guaranteed by the Commonwealth with a final maturity of 2016, of which
$6.8 million have a senior lien to the remaining $1.1 billion in parity debt.

The Authority’s bonds have credit ratings of Aa2 and AA from Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s,
respectively. In November 2011, Standard & Poor’s upgraded the Authority to AA from AA-.

Requests for Information

The Authority’s financial statements are designed to present readers with a general overview of
the Authority’s finances. Additional financial information, including official statements relating
to the Authority’s bonds, can be found on the Authority’s website www.mscba.org. Questions
concerning the financial statements or requests for additional financial information should be



addressed to the Executive Director, Massachusetts State College Building Authority, 253
Summer Street, Suite 300, Boston, Massachusetts 02210.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board

Massachusetts State College Building Authority
Boston, Massachusetts

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Massachusetts State
College Building Autherity (a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) (the Authority) as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements which collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal contro! relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s intemal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the business-type activities of the Authority as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in
financial position and its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages i through xii be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The statistical section contained on pages 30 through 34 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 24, 2013,
on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters for the year ended
June 30, 2013. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal conirol over financial reporting and
compliance.

Boston, Massachusetts
September 24, 2013



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachuselts)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (DEFICIENCY IN NET POSITION)

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments, including amounts held by bond trusiee
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments, including amounts held by bond trustee
Accounts receivable, net
Capital assets, net
Deposit

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred losses on refunding of debt

Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES

Current linbilitics
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics
Accrued payroll
Interagency payables
Compensated absences
Current portion of bonds payable

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Interagency payables
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION (DEFICIENCY IN NET POSITION)
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Expendable:
Capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position (deficiency in net position)

See notes to financial statements.

2013

$ 38,480,098

2012

5 46,999,799

54,732,239 32,622,951
6,082,762 35,375,185
7,018,923 4,523,098

583393 k
106,897.415 119,521,033
6,275,135 4,882,665
166,926,046 168,070,724
156,313,777 107,645,298
751,957,559 657,341,390
200.000 g
1,081.672.517 937,940,077
1,188.569.932 1.057.461.110

— 30.695.287 2,352,433

— 30,695,287 — 32352432

30,021,274 27,525,872

57,557 53,111

35,790,287 41,155,315

87,748 85,711

28,226,591 24904413

94,183,457 93,724 420

260,571 97,005

89,897 78314

6,112,469 5,269,093

1,140.862.923 1.006.467.050

1,147,325.860 1011911462

1,241.509.317 1,105,635 882
405,186 1,380,597
2,231,469 2,415,383
(24880753} ( 19.618.320)
(322.244,098) (15,822,340



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

{a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

OPERATING REVENUES

Income from contracts for financial assistance,
management, and services

Federal grants for debt service

Other miscellancous revenues

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES

Maintenance costs

Authority operating expenses
Depreciation

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES}Y

Net investment income

Interest expense

Bond issuance costs

Net transfers (to)/from State Universities
Net transfers (to)/from DCAM

Build America Bonds interest subsidy
Miscellaneous nonoperating revenue

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION (DEFICIENCY IN NET POSITION), BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION (DEFICIENCY IN NET POSITION), END OF YEAR

See notes to financial statements.

2013

5 59,081,652

2
—
[5]

$ 55373353

58,414 211,886
548.131 499 035
59,688,197 56,084.274
735,970 740,425
1,621,486 1,481,186
29,888,212 28,603,149
426.570 294516
32,672,238 31.119276
27,015,959 24,964,998
3,045,359 12,643,482

(  ALISLS2L) (37,776,890

(  L175271)  (  2,150,595)
3,981,300 3,050,414

( 497,294) -
2,302,924 2,360,991
56,777 546385

(__33437.7117) 21326213

(__6.421,758) 3,638,785

(_15822340)  (___19.461.125)

(22244098  (£._15.822.340)



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

{a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES

Cash received from contracts for financial assistance, management,
and services

Federal grants for debt service

Other miscellancous receipts

Payments for maintenance costs

Payments for operating expenses

Payments to employees

Payments for other cxpenses

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bond issuance

Cash paid to bond trustee related to advance refundings
Build America Bonds interest subsidy

Payments of bond issuance costs

Payments for capital assets

Miscellancous receipts

Release from (payment to) escrow for deposit on capital assets
Collections of debt service receivables

Transfer of funds from State Universitics

Payments from funds held for others

Funds received and held for others

Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchases of investments
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash cquivalents, end of year
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
{USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
{used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accrued payroll and compensated absences

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

See notes to financial statements.
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$ 55373,353

58,414 211,886

447,755 499,146

( 1,360,949) ( 706,154)
( 894,986) ( 700,844)
( 708,434) ( 769,830)
( 426.570) ( 294.516)
— 56,196,882 31.613.041
162,774,761 340,279,050

- ( 175.964,681)

2,302,924 2,360,991

( 1,175,271) ( 2,150,595)
(  116,854,913) ( 89,912,459)
56,777 546,385

( 200,000) .
8,417,939 6,139,842
3,981,309 3,050,414

(  68,409,449) ( 31,763,491)
8,967,539 14,005,758

(  21,450,000) (  19,400,000)
(__48.,640,758) (___38611,063)
(___70.229.142) 8.580.151
230,397,641 133,423,710
(  204,509,321) ( 236378,456)
3,125997 3,714,658
29,014,317 (___99.240,088)
14,982,057 ( 37,046,896)
84,505,415 121,552,311

S 20487472 S 84505415
$ 27,015,959 $ 24,964,998
29,888,212 28,603,149

( 583,393) @
( 141,962) 34,382
18.066 10,512
856,196 882 St 3,613,041



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies
Organization

Massachusetts State College Building Authority (the Authority) was created pursuant to Chapter 703 of the
Acts of 1963 of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts {the State or the Commonwealth), as amended (the
Act), as a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality for the general purpose of providing
dormiteries, dining commons and other facilities primarily for use by students and staff of certain state
colleges of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and their dependents. Such facilities may be provided in
collaboration with and for joint use by, other agencies, boards, commissions, or authorities of the
Commonwealth. The state universities include Bridgewater, Fitchburg, Framingham, Salem, Westfield and
Worcester State Universities, Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts, Massachusetts College of Art and
Design and Massachusetts Maritime Academy (collectively, the State Universities). The Authority provides
bond financing, design and construction management of new facilities, major renovations and capital
repairs for its projects at the State Universities. Annual obligations of the Authority include rent setting and
oversight of State University residence hall operating budgets. The Authority operates on the basis of a
Contract for Financial Assistance, Management and Services with the Board of Higher Education of the
Commonwealth (BHE), in which the BHE commits the State Universities to meet the statutory and
financial obligations related to the projects.

The Act was amended in 2010 to change the definition of state college to “any of the public institutions of
higher education in the state university segment or the community college segment.” As of June 30, 2013,
the Authority has not financed nor managed any project for any of the 15 community colleges.

The Authority is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Accordingly, the accompanying
financial stalements may not necessarily be indicative of the conditions that would have existed if the
Authority had been operated as an independent organization. The Authority’s financial statements are
included in the Commonwealth’s financial statements as a blended component unit.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the “economic resources measurement
focus™ and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
Revenues are recorded when eamned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The Authority has determined that it functions as a Business Type Activity, as defined by GASB.

The Authority’s policy for defining operating activities in the statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position are those that generally result from exchange transactions such as the payment
received for services and payment made for the purchase of goods and services. Certain other transactions
are reported as nonoperating activities in accordance with GASB Statement No. 35. These nonoperating
activities include the Authority’s net investment income and interest expense.



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

{a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
Net position

GASB Statement No. 34 requires that resources be classified for accounting purposes into the following
four net position categories:

o Net investment in capita! assets

Capital assets, which are net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt
attributable to the acquisition, construction, repair, or improvement of those assets. Deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are also included in this component of
net position.

* Restricted - nonexpendable

Net position which use is subject to externally imposed conditions that the Authority must maintain
them in perpetuity.

¢ Restricted - expendable

Net position which use is subject to extemally imposed conditions that can be fulfilled by the actions
of the Authority pursuant to those conditions or that expire by the passage of time.

¢ Unrestricted

All other categories of net position. Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific purposes
by action of the Authority’s Board.

The Authority has adopted a policy of reviewing, on an individual basis, all restricted - expendable funds,
for the purpose of determining the order in which restricted - expendable and unrestricted funds would be
utilized.

In accordance with the requirements of the Act, the Authority’s operations are accounted for in several trust
funds. All of these trust funds have been consolidated and are included in these financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
{a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

Cash equivalents

The Authority considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity date of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities are stated at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are
included in nonoperating revenues. Gains and losses on the disposition of investments are determined based
on specific identification of securities sold or the average cost method. Investment income is recognized
when earned and is generally credited to the trust fund holding the related assets. There were no significant
realized gains or losses on investments during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

The Authority has no donor-restricted endowmenits.

The Authority is currently authorized by its Board and the statutes of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
to invest funds of the Authority. The Authority's Retirement Trust was established outside of the Trust
Agreement and is invested given the three objectives of safety, return on investment, and liquidity. The
Board will support the investment of the Retirement Trust consistent with applicable law. The Board shall
establish investment policy, but delegate to the Finance and Audit Committee of the Authority to direct the
investment advisor.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the total amount of the future minimum payments to be received less
unearned interest income. Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. No allowance
for doubtful accounts has been made as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, as management considers all amounts
fully collectible.

Capital assets

The accompanying financial statemenis include the transactions of all of the Authority’s capital assets,
which include residence halls for approximately 14,860 students in 2013 and 14,340 students in 2012, some
with dining facilities, at the State Universities.

Project costs include land acquisition, architectural and engineering services, construction, furnishings and
equipment and related expenses for legal, accounting, and financial services. Such expenses have been
incurred for the construction of new facilities and for capital improvements to existing facilities. Fire alarm
system improvements, the installation of automatic sprinkler systems, the repair and replacement of roofs
and windows, and improvements to make the facilities accessible for use by handicapped persons are
examples of capital improvements to existing facilities undertaken by the Authority.



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
Capital assets - continued

Real estate assets, including improvements, are generally stated at cost. Furnishings and equipment are
stated at cost at date of acquisition. In accordance with the Authority’s capitalization policy, only those
items with a total project cost of more than $50,000, and all furniture, fixtures and equipment, are
capitalized. Interest costs on debt related to capital assets is capitalized during the construction period.
Authority capital assets, with the exception of land and construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which range from 3 to 40 years.

Bond issuance costs

Bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred. During fiscal 2013 and 2012, the Authority incurred
$1,175,271 and $2,150,595, respectively, of bond issuance costs.

Interest expense and capitalization

The Authority capilalizes interest costs incurred during the construction period of qualifying property
assets. The amount of interest costs capitalized on qualifying assets acquired with proceeds of tax-exempt
borrowings consists of all interest costs of the borrowing less any interest eamed on related interest-bearing
investments acquired with proceeds of the related tax-exempt borrowings from the date of the borrowing
until the assets are ready for their intended use. Bond premiums are amortized {o interest expense on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the related bonds. Deferred losses on bond refundings are amortized to
interest expense principally on the effective interest method over the terms of the old trust or new trust
agreements, whichever is shorter. During fiscal 2013 and 2012, total interest costs were accounted for as
follows:

2013 2012

Total interest incurred $ 48,844,879 § 44,888,868

Amortization of bond premium (  3,606,708) ( 2,422,331)

Amortization of deferred loss 1,657,145 1,006,582

Less: capitalized portion of interest incurred (___5.743.795) (___5.696.229)

Interest expense $ 41151521 $_ 37,776,890

Capitalized portion of interest incurred $ 5,743,795 $ 5,696,229
Less: interest income on unused funds from tax-

exempt borrowings ( 199.114) ( 792.793)

Net capitalized interest § 5544681 $___ 4903436



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

Fringe benefits

The Authority participates in the Commonwealth’s fringe benefit programs, including health insurance,
unemployment, and pension for which it is billed by the Commonwealth. Worker’s compensation insurance
is purchased as a separate policy within the Authority’s insurance portfolio.

Compensated absences

Employees earn the right to be compensated during absences for vacation leave and sick leave. Accrued
vacation is the amount earned and unused by all eligible employees through June 30 of each year. The
accrued sick leave balance represents 20% of amounts earned at the end of the fiscal year. Upon retirement,
these employees are entitled to receive payment for these accrued balances,

Tax status

The Authority is a component unit of the Commonwealth and is therefore exempt from federal and state
income taxes.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2012 financial statements to conform to the 2013
presentation.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

In June, 2012, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, the primary objective of which is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions by requiring governments
providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability
for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension
benefits. The Statement also enhances accountability and wransparency through revised and new note
disclosures and required supplementary information. The requirements of GASB Statement No. 68 are
effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014 with earlier application
encouraged. The Authority is currently evaluating the impact of this GASB Statement on its fiscal year
2015 financial statements.

10



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

Recent accounting pronouncements - continued

Recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted - continued

In April, 2013, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, the primary objective of which is to improve the accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial
quarantees. The Statement enhances comparability of financial statemenits among governments by requiring
consistent reporting by those govemments that extend nonexchange financial guarantees and by those
governments that receive nonexchange financial guarantees and enhances the information disclosed about a
government's obligations and risk exposure from extending nonexchange financial guarantees. This
Statement also augments the ability of financial statement users to assess the probability that govemments
will repay obligation holders by requiring disclosures about obligations that are issued with this type of
financial guarantee. The requirements of GASB Statement No. 70 are effective for financial statements for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013 with earlier application encouraged. The Authority does not
believe that its adoption of this statement in fiscal 2014 will have a material impact on the Authority’s
financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents, and investments

Credit risk
Credit risk includes the risk that securities that the Authority has invested in will default.

The Authority’s Trust Agreement stipulates that only certain highly rated securities are eligible investments.
The Authority has a formal investment policy consistent with the Trust Agreement in which permissible
investment obligations include: (i) certain direct or agency obligations which are unconditionally
guaranteed by the United States of America; (ii) certain interest bearing instruments issued by a banking
institution with a long-term unsecured debt rating in one of the two highest long-term rating categories, (iii)
commercial paper rated in the highest rating category; and (iv) obligations of state or local governments or
authorities thereof rated in the two highest rating categories. The Authority is also required to comply with
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ deposit and investment policies which are principally defined in the
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 29. The Authority’s deposit and investment policies are generally
consistent with those of the State Statutes.

Custodial credit risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may
not be returned to it.

The Authority has two primary banking relationships: RBS Citizens, N.A. (Citizens) is the Authority’s
primary depository bank and U.S. Bank National Association (U.S. Bank) is the Authority’s trustee bank
and holds all bond and related funds pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The Authority is party to a third party
custodian agreement in which Citizens provides the Authority with collateral equal to the Authority’s
uninsured deposits and the custodian provides safekeeping services and holds the collateral on behalf of and



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
{a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Cash and cash equivalents, and investments - continued

Custodial credit risk - continued

for the benefit of the Authority. Pursuant to the agreement, eligible collateral is limited to only those
obligations which are guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest by the United States of
America. All of the Authority’s bank balances held by Citizens of $55,117,922 and $59,331,897 as of June
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, were secured and fully collateralized pursuant to this agreement.

The Authority does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk with U.S. Bank. As of June 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively, the fair market value of the Authority’s cash equivalent balances with U.S.
Bank of $58,381,080 and 341,163,784, respectively, were exposed to custodial credit risk because they
were uninsured and uncollateralized. The funds at U.S. Bank were invested in Fidelity Institutional Money
Market Government Fund 57 (the Fund 57) which invests primarily in U.S. government securities,
repurchase agreements, and may invest in reverse repurchase agreements guaranteed by U.S. Treasury
obligations. The Fund 57 seeks to preserve the investment value of $1 per share and the investment
securities maintain a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less.

The Authority's investments are held at U.S. Bank and Citizens and are represented by the following at
June 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012

Fair Fair

Cost Value Cost Value
U.S. Agencies $ 61,604,762 $ 62,939,792 § 77,854,937 § 79,970,208
Commercial paper 65,464,241 65,515,978 90,216,262 90,338,599
State taxable bonds 17,475,000 19,404,207 17,475,000 21,952,160
U.S. Treasuries 24,234,551 25,148.831 9.119.369 11,184,942

$ 168,778,554

£ 173.008.808 5 104,665,568 $ 203,445,900

12
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Cash and cash equivalents, and investments - continued

Custodial credit risk - continued

At June 30, 2013, the Authority’s investments, investment maturities and credit quality ratings, based on
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. ratings, are as follows:

Investment Type

Fannie Mae Corporation
(FNMA) U.S. Govt. Issues
Fannie Mae Corporation
(FNMA) discount notes
Federal Home Loan Banks
(FHLB) U.S. Govt. Issues
Federal Home Loan Banks
(FHLB) discount notes
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corp. (FHLMC)
U.S. Govt. Issues
Federal Farm Credit Banks
(FFCB) U.S. Govt. Issues
Commercial Paper (GE Cap.

Corp.)

Massachusetts ST Bonds

U.S. Government Securities -
Treasury Notes

U.S. Government Securities -
Treasury Bonds

Total

Investment Maturities (in years)

Less Greater
Fair Value Than 1 15 6-10 Than 10
5 4961485 5§ 4,550,132 3§ 411,353  § -8 -

17,642,468 17,642,468 - - -
11,741,672 6,964,829 4,776,843 - -

8,088,765 8,088,765 - - -

14,555,142 - 2,753,701 11,801,441 -
5,950,260 - 5,950,260 - -

65,515,978 65,515,978 - - -

19,404,207 - - 1,445,308 17,958,899
15,927,104 15,506,439 420,665 - -
9.221.727 1.400.000 - - 1.821,727

8173.008.808 $LI9.668.611 314312822 $13,246,740 §25,780,626

Credit
Rating
Aaa
Aaa
Aaa

Aaa

Aaa
Aaa

P-1
Aaa -
Aa2
Aaa

Aaa

The Authority classifies its restricted cash and cash equivalents, and investments between current and
noncurrent classifications in the accompanying statements of net position (deficiency in net position)
according to its plans for their use in liquidating associated liabilities. Investments with maturities of less
than one year that are not required to be used to liquidate current liabilities are reflected as noncurrent assets
in accordance with management’s intention to reinvest the proceeds of those investments upon their

maturity.

Investments held by the bond trustee represent project funds, as well as debt service and certain reserve

funds.

13
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable include the following at June 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 012
Debt service receivables $ 162,243,065 111,188,170
Interest receivable on investments 696,137 586,728
Build America Bonds interest subsidy receivable 393.498 393.498

$ 163,332,700  §.112,168,396

The Authority anticipates that all of its interest receivables will be collected within a one-year time frame.

The Commonwealth’s policy for accounting for capital and renovation projects provides for the State
University with ownership of the underlying asset to also own any related improvements to these facilities.
Under this policy, the Authority recognizes as accounts receivable the minimum payments, net of unearned
interest income, to be received from the State Universities. Conversely, the State Universities recognize a
corresponding liability to the Authority.

During fiscal 2013, accounts receivable, net of unearned interest income, totaling $54,914,986 were
recorded in connection with projects at six State Universities and a capital asset transfer to the
Commonwealth (see Note 4). During fiscal 2012, accounts receivable, net of unearned interest income,
totaling $35,991,393 were recorded in connection with projects at five State Universities. A corresponding
Interagency payable was also recorded by the Authority in both years as discussed further in Note 6.

Additionally, during 2012, the Authority made a miscellanecus adjustment of $179,563, to accounts
receivable and unearned income that reflects interest savings due io the bond refunding in that year.

The components of the Authority’s investment in these State University-owned projects as of June 30, 2013
and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
Total payments to be received $§ 225,335,835 $ 161,358,745
Less: unearned income (_63.092.770) (__50.170.575)
Net investment in State University-owned
projects 3 162,243,065 & 111188170

14



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

3. Accounts receivable - continued

The following table sets forth the total payments to be received under these agreements as of June 30, 2013:

Year ending June 30:

2014 $§ 11,879,706
2015 11,860,891
2016 11,866,868
2017 11,861,114
2018 11,786,187
2019-2023 59,283,564
2024 - 2028 59,761,124
2029 - 2033 35,635,628
2034 - 2038 8,247,728
2039 - 2042 3,153,025
Total $ 225335835

4. Capital assets

Capital assets activity for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013
Reclassifications
Totals And Totals
June 30, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013
Land $ 3,832,388 $ 390,840 5 . $ 4,223,228
Construction in progress 43.016.119 119.412.874 (__28.065.186) 134.363.807
Total not being depreciated 46.848.507 119,803,714 (__28.065.186) 138.587.035
Buildings and improvements 819,047,784 4,280,336 26,584,875 849,912,995
Furnishings and equipment 40.803.883 1,900,642 - 42,704,525
Total depreciable assets 859.851.667 6,180,978 26,584,875 892,617,520
Total capital assets 906.700.174 125,984,692 (__1480.311) _1.031.204.555
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements ( 233,138,665) ( 27,464,383) - { 260,603,048)
Furnishings and equipment (_16,220,119) (__2.423.829) - (_18.643.948)
Total accumulated depreciation  ( 249,358,784) (29.888.212) - (_279.246.996)

Capital assets, net $ 657,341,390 3 96,096,480 $( 1.480.311) §751,957,559



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Capital assets - continued

2012
Reclassifications
Totals and Totals
June 30, 2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012
Land ¥ 3,832,388 $ - $ - ¥ 3,832,388
Construction in progress __93.537.885 86,691,254 (1372130200 _ 43016.119
Total not being depreciated 97,370,273 86,691,254 ((137.213.020) 46,848,507
Buildings and improvements 680,671,878 1,162,386 137,213,020 819,047,784
Furnishings and equipment 37.741.760 3.062.123 - 40,803,883
Tota! depreciable assets 718413638 4,225,009 137.213.020 859.851.667
Total capilal assets 815783911 90.916,263 - 906.700.174
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements ( 206,950,855) ( 26,187,810) - ( 233,138,665)
Furnishings and equipment (__13.804.780) (2415339 - (_16.220.119)
Total accumulated depreciation  ((220.755.635) (__28.603.149) - (L249.358.784)
Capital assets, net 595,028,276 §. 62313114 R -  £657.341.390

During 2013, the Authority transferred the real estate, personal property and improvements located at
Ashland Street in North Adams, MA to The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting through its Division
of Capital Asset Management (DCAM). This capital asset, with a cost basis of $1,480,311 was acquired
and renovated by the Authority with the intended use of an administrative office building for the
Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts. In accordance with the Authority’s accounting policy for capiltal
and renovation projects for the State Universities with ownership of the underlying asset, an accounts
receivable from Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts was recorded in a net amount of $1,024,485 as well
as an interagency payable to record the remaining funds held by the Authority on behalf of the University in
the amount of $41,468. A noncash transfer of $497,294 was recognized upon the transfer of the capital
asset.

The Authority has considered the requirements of GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, and has noted no implications of this standard to the
Authority’s financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, capital assels with a cost of approximately $63,800,000 and $46,700,000,
respectively, were fully depreciated and still in service,

The Authority has entered into various purchase commitments with contractors for the purchase of

equipment, construction of certain facilities and other improvements. The amounts under commitment
were approximately $69,500,000 and $43,000,000, respectively, as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Capital assets and construction payables § 15,221,483 § 11,636,385
Accrued bond interest payable 10,344,495 10,303,940
Arbitrage payable - long term 260,571 97,005
Contractor payables for State University owned assets 4,452,507 5,440,796
Lease deposit (see Note 14) - 100,376
Authority operating and maintenance expenses 2,789 44,375

330,281,845 § 27,622,877
Interagency payables

Under the provisions of the 2012C, 2012A, 20104, 2010B, 2009C, 2009B, 2009A, 2008A, 2006A, 2005A
and 2003A Trust Agreements (see Note 7), a portion of the bond proceeds, together with certain earnings
thereon, are being or have been used to finance the costs of capital projects for certain of the State
Universities on State University-owned property. The State Universities are required to pay to the Authority
the amount necessary to pay the applicable portion of the bond issuance costs and bond principal and
interest payments when they become due. The Authority has recorded accounts receivable from the State
Universities reflecting its net investment in these capital projects as discussed further in Note 3. The
unspent bond proceeds for the costs of these projects and related bond amounts are included in the
Authority’s financial statements under restricted cash and cash equivalents, and restricted investments,

Certain of the State Universities may also be required to commit additional funding for the projects over
and above the amounts provided from bond proceeds. Such amounts (the State University contributions)
received from the State Universities are also included in restricted cash and cash equivalents, and restricted
investments. The Authority has recorded corresponding Interagency payables to the State Universities for
the unspent State University contributions, and unspent bond proceeds and related bond amounts. As capital
and construction costs relating to these projects are incurred and paid, restricted cash and cash equivalents,
and restricted investments, and the corresponding Interagency payables are reduced.

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority has an aggregate liability for Interagency payables of
$41,902,756 and $46,424,408, respectively.

Bonds payable

The Authority issues debt to finance the design and construction of new facilities, major renovations and
capital repairs for its projects at state colleges, pursuant to the Act. The Authority's outstanding debt is
secured by either (i) a guarantee by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts o pay principal and interest, or
(ii) revenues received by the Authority from state colleges relating to Authority projects and other pledged
funds. Interest on the Authority's debt is payable on May | and November 1 and principal is due annually
on May 1. The Authority's outstanding debt is rated Aa2 and AA by Moody's and Standard & Poors,
respectively.
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwvealth of Massachusetis)

Bonds payable - continued:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

The following table summarizes the Authority's ouistanding debt as of June 30, 2013:

Commonwenlth-Guaronteed Bonds
Refunding Series 1934A (first lien)
Refunding Series 2004B

Total Commonwealth-Guarmnieed Bonds

Project Revenue Bonds
Refunding Series 2003B
Series 2004A
Sertes 20054
Series 2006A
Series 2008A
Series 2009A
Series 2009B
Series 2009C, Build America Bonds
Series 2010A
Series 2010B, Build America Bonds
Refurling Sertes 2011A
Series 20124
Refunding Series 201 2B
Serics 2 2C

Tounl Project Revenie Bonds

Tatal C wealth-Guar

EMective
Interest Due Interest Par Amount Ubomortited Total Bonds
1ssue Date Par Amount Raies (%) Mauy 1, Rates (%)* Outstanding Premi Payable
November 9, 1993 § 89315000 40-75 1995-2016 750 s 6,824,999 $ 226037 $ 7,051,036
February 19, 2004 15125000 64-70 2015-2016 671 15,125,006} 3,021,676 18.146.676
104,440,000 21.549.999 324713 25,197,713
March 5, 2003 117,513,022 20-55  2003-2039 357 103,408,022 5,701,042 109,109,064
January 22, 2004 6),505000 20-50 2005-2043 433 1,855,000 317,266 2,182,266
March 23, 2005 36875000 30.50 2006-2017 400 6,920,000 94,098 7,014,058
March 8, 2006 08025000 35-50 2007-204 41 8] 42,010,060 1,949,171 43959101
March 12, 2008 956710,000 30-50 2009-2038 190 90,625,000 2,068,649 92,693,649
January 28, 2009 128,570,000 30-575 2010.2049 517 123,565,000 495319 124,060,319
December 33, 2009 82085000 20-50 2011 - 2040 477 79,110,000 3,213,972 82,323.972
Brecember 22, 2009 66,410,000 458 -593 2018 - 2040 574 66,410,000 . 66,410,000
December 17, 2010 12,120,000 30-50  2012.2018 424 8,950,000 720,255 9,670,255
Decembet 17, 2010 47,880,000 48%-654 2020- 2040 612 47,880,000 - 47,880,000
June 8, 2011 51,610,000 20-50 2012-2025 .96 51,175,000 6,712,207 57,887,207
Tanuary 4. 2012 154,345000 30-50 2013 -2041 415 153,815,000 12,651,806 166,476,806
March 1, 3012 1468275000 30-50 2018 - 2043 469 149,275,000 22,327,531 171,602,531
December 20, 2012 153.840.000 20-50  20014-2042 342 153,840,000 8,782,464 162,622,464
},255.723.022 1.078.858.022 £5.033.780 1.143.891.802

| & Project Revenue Bonds

5 1.360.163.022

§ 1100808021 § 68281.493

5 1,169,089.514

* Effecuve Interest Rates are caleubated by dividing total interest paid during the year by the average outstanding balance ol bonds payable

The following table summarizes the Authority’s outstanding debt as of June 30, 2012:

Commouweallh-Guaranteed Bonds
Refunding Series 1994A (first lien)
Refunding Series 2004B

Total Commonwealth-Cuaranteed Bonds

Project Revenue Bonds
Series 2003A
Refunding Series 2003B
Series 2004A
Series 2005A
Series 2006A
Series 2008A
Series 2009A
Series 2009B
Series 2005C, Build America Bonds
Series 2010A
Seriet 20108, Build America Bonds
Refunding Series 201 1A
Series 2012A
Refunding Series 20128

Tom! Projeet Revenue Bonds

Elective
Interest Due Interest Par Amount Unamorieed Total Bonds
Issue Dale Par Amount Rates (%) May 1, Rates (%)*  Outstanding Premlums Payable
November9,1994 § 89315000 40-75 1995-2015 7.50 S 13169999 $ 452073 § 13,622,072
February 19, 2004 15125000 64-70 2015-2016 6.7] 15.125.000 3.125.872 18.250.872
104,440,000 28,29.4.999 3,577,945 31,872,944
March 5, 2003 105,490,000 2.0.3525 2005-.2013 491 1,945,000 253,751 2,238,751
March 5, 2003 117,513,022 20-55 2003 - 2039 359 104,888,022 5911,018 110,809,040
Innuary 22, 2004 61,505,000 20-50 2005-2043 483 3,665,000 698,196 4,363,196
March 23, 2005 36,875,000 30-50 2006.2017 431 B, 480,000 118,631 8,598,631
March 8, 2006 98025000 35-50 2007 -20d1 49 44,065,000 2,018,154 46,084,154
March 12, 2008 95670000 30-50 2009-2038 488 9,875,000 2,151,950 94,026,950
Tanuary 28, 2009 128,570,000 3.0-575 2010.2049 315 125,150,000 509,142 E25.659,142
Decernber 223, 2009 82085000 20-39 20l1-2040 4.1 80,410,000 3,333,747 83,743,747
Diecember 22, 2009 66,410,000 458-593 2018.2040 51 66,410,000 . 66,410,000
December 17, 2010 12,120,000 30-50 2012-2018 407 10,560,000 860,245 11,428,245
Decembet 17, 2010 47,880,000 489-654 2020-2040 612 47,880,000 - 47,880,000
June 8, 2011 51,610,000 20-50 20§2-2025 5.03 51,175,000 7,278,359 58,453,359
January 4, 2012 154345000 30-50 2013-2041 472 154,345,000 13,106,362 167,451,362
March L, 2012 149.275.000  30-50 2018 - 2043 469 149,275,000 23.075.940 172,350,540
1,207.373.,022 940,123,022 59,375,495 999,498.517

Total Commonwenlth-Guarnnteed & Project Revenue Bonds

Sl

5 968,418,021 § 62.953.440

§ 1.031371.461

* Effective Interest Rates are calculated by dividing total interest paid during the year by the average outstanding balance of bonds payable



MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

7. Bonds payable - continued

The following table is the amortization schedule for the Authority’s long-term debt:

Year Ending June 30: Total Principal Total Interest Total Debt Service
2014 3 24,825,000 $ 53,194,735 b 78,019,735
2015 29,585,000 50,063,256 79,648,256
2016 33,736,780 50,433,010 34,169,790
2017 31,088,683 49,437,555 30,526,238
2018 35,060,000 45,669,368 80,729,368
2019 - 2023 181,433,158 231,559,036 412,992,104
2024 - 2028 216,534,400 195,707,991 412,242,391
2029 - 2033 197,100,000 112,492,366 309,592,366
2034 - 2038 206,810,000 65,014,902 271,824,902
2039 - 2043 130,890,000 18,093,211 148,983,211
2044 - 2048 11,130,000 2,684,088 13,814,088
2049 2.615.000 147,238 2,762,238
Total 1,100,808,021 3. 874496756 £._1.975.304,777
Plus: Unamortized premiums 68.281.,493
£..1,169,089.514

Defeasance of Debt

From time to time, the Authority issues refunding bonds to defease outstanding bonds. The proceeds of the
refunding bonds are placed in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service on the refunded or
defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability for the defeased bonds are not included
in the accompanying financial statements. The differences between the reacquision prices and net carrying
amount of the bonds defeased with refunding debt are reported in the accompanying statements of net
position (deficiency in net position) as deferred outflows of resources and charged annually to interest
expense over the shorter of the remaining life of the refunded or refunding bonds principally using the
effective interest method.

Commonwealth-Guaranteed Bonds

The Refunding Series 1994A Bonds refunded the Authority's Commonwealth guaranteed Series 1986
Bonds.

The Refunding Series 2004B Bonds refunded a portion of the Authority's Commonwealth guaranteed Series
1994A Bonds. These bonds were refinanced pursuant to an Option Agreement dated February 12, 1998
between the Authority and Lehman Brothers Special Financing, Inc. which gave Lehman the option, under
certain circumstances, to cause the Authority to issue Commonwealth guaranteed bonds to refund the Series
1994A Bonds. The refunding resulted in a deferred outflow of resources at issuance of $130,950 of which
$23,595 and $31,460 were unamortized as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Bonds payable - continued
Project Revenue Bonds

The Refunding Series 2003B Bonds refunded the Authority's Series 1999A, 1999-1, and 2000-1 Bonds.
These bonds were refinanced to achieve a total reduction of debt service at issuance of $1,769,263 and a
present value economic gain at issuance of $729,611. The refunding resulted in a deferred outflow of
resources at issuance of $21,535,590 of which $14,956,887 and $15,663,618 were unamortized as of June
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. In November 2011 and May 2010, the Authority exercised call options to
fully redeem the remaining unpaid principal of the Series 1999-1 and 2000-1 Bonds, respectively. As of
June 30, 2013, the assets held in escrow for the repayment of the remaining Series 1999A Bonds have an
aggregate market value of $85,368,351 with an unpaid principal balance, plus accreted interest, of
$64,039,693.

The Refunding Series 2011 A Bonds refunded portions of the Authority's Series 2003A and 2004 A Bonds.
These bonds were refinanced to achieve a total reduction of debt service at issuance of $3,518,799 and a
present value economic gain at issuance of $2,822,354, The refunding resulted in a deferred outflow of
resources at issuance of $2,638,154 of which $2,245,703 and $2,435,270 were unamortized as of June 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively. As of June 30, 2013, the assets held in escrow for the repayment of the
remaining Series 2003A and 2004A Bonds have an aggregate market value of $22,596,261 with an unpaid
principal balance, plus accreted interest, of $21,615,000.

The Refunding Series 2012B Bonds refunded portions of the Authority's Series 2003A, 2004A, 2005A, and
2006A Bonds. These bonds were refinanced to achieve a total reduction of debt service at issuance of
$20,587,474 and a present value economic gain at issuance of $13,285,676. The refunding resulted in a
deferred outflow of resources at issuance of $14,347,581 of which $13,469,102 and $14,222,084 were
unamortized as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As of June 30, 2013, the assets held in escrow for
the repayment of the remaining Series 2003A, 2004A, 2005A, and 2006A Bonds have an aggregate market
value of $101,890,314 with an unpaid principal balance, plus accreted interest, of $93,240,000.

Debt service reserve fund investment agreements

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2003A Bonds, Series 2005A Bonds, Series 2006A Bonds and
Series 2008 A Bonds, the Authority entered into debt service reserve fund investment agreements which
provide for a guaranteed rate of return on the applicable debt service reserve funds to support the
Authority’s future debt service payments. The agreements provide for termination under certain
circumstances as more fully described in the agreements. Termination of the agreements may generate a
gain or loss to the Authority depending on the nature and circumstances of the termination. The 2012B
Refunding Bonds refunded a portion of the Series 2005A Bonds which necessitated that a portion
($1,800,000) of the original Series 2005A debt service reserve fund investment agreement be terminated.
The terms of the agreement provided for a $525,000 termination payment 10 be made to the Authority. The
funds received from this termination payment are being held in the Series 2005A Bonds Rebate Account.
The Authority recognized $525,000 as miscellaneous nonoperating revenue for this termination payment in
the accompanying 2012 statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position (see Note 18).
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Bonds payable - continued

Debt service reserve fund investment agreements - continued

Unamortized bond premiums are reflected as an addition to the outstanding principal balance of the bonds

payable and consisted of the following at June 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Unamortized balance, beginning § 62,953,440 $ 30,541,361
Current year additions 8,934,761 36,659,049
Unamortized premium on bonds refunded - ( 1,824,639
Current year amortization {__3.606.708) (__2422331)
Unamortized balance, ending 3 68281493 §_62.953.440

Deferred losses on bond refundings are reflected as deferred outflows of resources in the accompanying
statements of net position (deficiency in net position) and consisted of the following at June 30, 2013 and

2012:
2013 2012
Balance, beginning $ 32,352,432 $ 19,011,433
Current year additions - 14,347,581
Current year amortization (___1.657,145) (__1.006,582)
Balance, ending 3_30,695.287 $ 32,352,432
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2013 and 2012 consisted of the following:

2013 _
Beginning Ending Current
balance Additions Reductions balance portion
Bonds payable, par § 968,418,021 $ 153,840,000 3 (21,450,000) 5 1,100,808,021 S 24,825,000
Unamortized premiums 62,953,440 8,934,761 (3,606,708) 68,281,493 3,401,591
Total bonds payable 1,031,371,461 162,774,761 (25,056,708)  1,169,089,514 28,226,591
Interagency payables 46,424,408 62,858,041 (67,379,693) 41,902,756 35,790,287
Other liabilities:
Arbitrage payable 97,005 163,566 - 260,571 -
Compensated absences 164,025 130,387 (116,767 177,645 87,748

Total long-term liabilities § 1,078,056,899 $ 225926,755 S  (92,553,168) § 1,211,430,486 § 64,104,626

2012
Beginning Ending Current
balance Additions Reductions balance portion
Bonds payable, par 3 840,663,021 § 303,620,000 $ (175865000)§ 968,418,021 § 21.450,000
Unamortized premiums 30,541,361 36,659,049 (4,246,970) 62,953,440 1454411
Total bonds payable 871,204,382 340,279,049 (180,111,970)  1,031,371,461 24,904,411
Interagency payables 30,859,441 50,155,793 (34,590,826) 46,424,408 41,155,315
Other liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 100,265 111 (100,376) - -
Arbitrage payable 37,619 59,386 - 97,005 -
Compensated absences 162,746 122,937 {121,658) 164,025 85,711

Total long-term liabilities s 902,364,453  § 390,617,276 § _ (214,924830) 3 1,078,056,899 § 66,145,437
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Net position

The net investment in capital assets of $405,186 at June 30, 2013, includes the effect of deferring the
recognition of the losses on bond refundings. The $30,695,287 balance of the deferred outflows of
resources at June 30, 2013 will be amortized to interest expense over the terms of the old trust or new trust
agreements, whichever is shorter, which will decrease the unrestricted net position and increase the net
investment in capital assets over those periods (see Note 7).

The Authority is the recipient of funds that are subject to various extemal constraints upon their use, either
as to purpose or time. These funds are comprised of the following:

2013 2012
Restricted - expendable:
DCAM/MSCBA contract restricted for life
safety and access improvements and
repositioning of O'Connor Hall §2231,469 $2415383

10. Contingencies

11.

Pending or threatened lawsuits against the Authority arise in the ordinary course of operations. In the
opinion of management, no litigation is now pending, or threatened, that would materially affect the
Authority's financial position.

Through fiscal 2013, the Authority received financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development in the form of grants. Expenditures of funds under these programs require compliance
with the grant agreements and are subject to audit. Any disallowed expenditures resulting from such audits
become a liability of the Authority. In the opinion of management, such liabilities, if any, are not expected
to materially affect the financial condition of the Authority.

Operating expenses

The Authority’s operating expenses for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, on a natural classification
basis, are comprised of the following:

2013 012
Compensation $ 727,813 5 782,682
Supplies and services 2,056,213 1,733,445
Depreciation 29.888.212 28.603.149
332,672,238 £..31.119,276
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Retirement plan

The Authority's full-time employees are covered by the Massachusetts State Employees' Retirement System
(SERS and the Plan). SERS, a single employer defined benefit public employee retirement system, is
administered by the Massachusetts State Retirement Board. SERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter
32 of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the Massachusetts Legislature. For active Authority employees covered by
SERS, the Authority is not required to make contributions to the Plan. For retired Authority employees, the
Commonwealth computes the projected benefit obligation of the retired employee. The Authority is
responsible to contribute any shortfall that exists as a result of this computation. The total amount paid by
the Authority to the Massachusetts State Retirement Board amounted to $93,243, $84,452 and $84,452 for
the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each
year. Annual covered payroll was approximately 100% of annual total payroll for the Authority in 2013,
2012 and 2011.

The Commonwealth does not issue separately audited financial statements for the Plan. The financial
position and results of operations of the Plan are incorporated into the Commonwealth’s financial
statements, a copy of which may be obtained from the Office of the State Comptroller, Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, Cne Ashburton Place, Room 901, Boston, MA 02108.

All full-time staff are covered by and must participate in SERS. Benefits fully vest after 10 years of full-
time employment. An employee may receive retirement benefits after 20 years of service, or after 10 years
of service and having attained the age of 55.

Based on State statute, covered employees of the Authority contribute an amount ranging from 5% to 9%
(depending on date of employment) of their eligible compensation to SERS. Employees hired after January
1, 1979, are required to contribute an additional 2% for the eligible compensation over $30,000 per year.
The Board of the Authority has voted to make actuarially determined contributions to a retirement trust
fund.

Retiree health plan

The Authority contributes to the Commonwealth’s Group Insurance Commission (GIC), which manages a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan for the Commonwealth and
other govemments within the Commonwealth. GIC provides medical benefits to retired employees of
participating governments. Chapter 32A of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the GIC board of commissioners. The
GIC does not issue separately audited financial statements. The financial pesition and results of operations
of the plan are incorporated into the Commonwealth’s financial statements, a copy of which may be
obtained from the Office of the State Comptroller, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, One Ashburton Place,
Room 901, Bostoen, MA 02108,

Chapter 32A provides that contribution requirements of the plan members and the participating
governments are established and may be amended by the GIC. Plan members or beneficiaries receiving
benefits contribute anywhere from 0% to 20% depending on entry age.
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Retiree health plan - continued

Participating governments are contractually required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by GIC on a
premium basis. The Authority’s contributions to GIC for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011,
were $110,781, $100,615 and $113,318, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.
Required contributions include contributions for the total health plan costs for both active and retired
employees.

Lease commitments and receivables

On July 24, 2009, the Authority entered into a lease agreement with an unrelated third party for new office
space located in Boston, Massachusetts. The lease was amended in January 2010 increasing the leased
space to approximately 5,700 square feet. As amended, the lease provides for a minimum annual base rent
of $115,885 for the initial year of the lease agreement and increases to $184,470 per year for year eight and
each of the remaining two years thereafter in the lease term. The initial year base rent also reflects a two-
month free rent period. The lease is for a term of 120 months and expires in February 2020. The Authority
is also required to pay, as additional rent, its pro rata share of real estate tax and operating expense
escalations, as specified in the lease agreement.

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, rent expense incurred, including additional costs for monthly
storage and parking which are not provided under the terms of the lease agreement, amounted to $167,122
and $153,395, respectively.

Future minimum rental payments under this operating lease agreement are as follows:

Year ending June 30: Amount
2014 $ 169,334

2015 173,118

2016 173,118

2017 176,902

2018 184,470

2019 - 2020 __ 307450
3.1.184,392

On June 25, 2010, the Authority entered into a lease agreement with the Massachusetts College of
Pharmacy and Health Sciences (MCPHS) for the purpose of leasing a portion of the dormitory residences of
the new student residence hall at the Massachusetts College of Art and Design (MCAD) which was
completed in May 2012, Occupancy of the leased space began in the Fall 2012 academic semester. The
lease was amended as of May 9, 2012 to allow for, among other matters, additional bed spaces, revised
extension terms and revised total rent payments. The cost of the portion of the property that is leased to
MCPHS and included in buildings and improvements on the accompanying statements of net position
(deficiency in net position) amounts to approximately $35,101,000 at both June 30, 2013 and 2012, with
accumulated depreciation of $1,755,013 and $877,506 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. In
accordance with the lease agreement, MCPHS deposited $100,000 with the Authority in December 2009,
which together with interest earned thereon, in the amount of $100,391, was credited towards the payment
of MCPHS's first installment of annual rent during fiscal 2013. As of June 30, 2012, the deposit and
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Lease commitments and receivables - continued

interest earned thereon, in the amount of $100,376, was included in current restricted cash and cash
equivalents and current accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the accompanying statements of net
position {deficiency in net position).

The lease agreement provides for an initial term of five academic years for the original bed spaces and four
academic years for the new bed spaces per the lease amendment, The lease commenced in August, 2012,
The lease term for the original bed spaces may be extended for three additional, consecutive five year
periods and the term of the new bed spaces may be extended for one additional one year period. The option
to extend a term shall be exercised not less than one year prior to the expiration of the term then in effect.
Annual rent for an academic year shall be due and payable in equal installments in September and February.
Annual rent during the periods of extension provide for rent increases as defined in the lease agreement.

On August 7, 2012, the Authority entered into a lease agreement with Harvard Vanguard Medical
Associates, Inc. (Harvard Vanguard) to lease approximately 2,395 square feet of space at MCAD for the
purpose of operating a student health services clinic. The cost of the property leased to Harvard Vanguard
and included in buildings and improvements on the accompanying statements of net position (deficiency in
net position) amounts to approximately $1,107,000 at both June 30, 2013 and 2012, with accumulated
depreciation of $55,284 and $27,642 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The lease agreement provides for an initial term of five years commencing in August 2012, and thereafter,
at the option of Harvard Vanguard, may be extended for three additional, five year periods. The option to
extend a term shall be exercised not less than one year prior to the expiration of the term then in effect.
Annual rent shall be due in advance on the anniversary of the commencement date. Annual rent shall
increase two and a half percent per year during the initial lease term and all extension periods.

The Authority has entered into an agreement with MCAD whereby the MCPHS and Harvard Vanguard
lease payments will be made on a semiannual basis directly to MCAD, as payment of rent, and held in
MCAD’s residence hall trust fund and shall be used by MCAD for the operation of the leased property in a
similar manner in which residence hall fees are used by the University and the Authority. In accordance
with the lease agreement MCPHS and Vanguard paid MCAD $3,214,270 and $24,474, respectively, during
fiscal 2013. The Authority assesses annual obligations to MCAD, which include the pro rata share of the
building occupied by MCPHS and Harvard Vanguard, on the same debt assessment basis the Authority uses
for their other residence halls. The annual assessment included in income from contracts for financial
assistance, management, and services in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position for fiscal 2013 related to these lease agreements amounted to $1,969,500.

Future minimum rental income to be remitted to MCAD under these operating lease agreements are as
follows:

Year ending June 30: MCPHS Harvard Vanguard Total
2014 $ 3,214.270 8§ 24474 § 3,238,744
2015 3,214,270 25,086 3,239,356
2016 3,326,790 25,713 3,352,503
2017 2,692 858 26,356 2,719,214
2018 325,000 3.305 328.305

£12773,)88 § 104934  § 12,878,122
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

15. Supplemental cash flows information

Schedule of noncash investing and financing activities

2013
Acquisition of capilal assets $ 125,984,692
Accounts payable thereon:
Beginning of year 11,636,385
End of year { 15,221,483)
Net interest incurred and earned, capitalized in construction in progress { 5,544,681)
Payments for capital assets $£116,854913
Transfer of capital asset to DCAM 3 1480311

Accounts receivable and Interagency payables related to State
University capital projects on State University owned property $ 54,914,986

Unearned interest income on accounts receivable related to State
University capital projects on State University owned property $ 17,488,249

Contractor accounts payable related to State University capital
projects on State University owned property $ 4,452,507

Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities (&_4.550,087)
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17.

MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY

(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Supplemental cash flows information - continued

Schedule of noncash investing and financing activities - continued

012
Acquisition of capital assets $ 90,916,263
Accounts payable thereon:
Beginning of year 15,536,017
End of year ( 11,636,385)
Net interest incurred and earned, capitalized in construction in progress (__4.903.436)
Payments for capital asseis $ 89912459
Accounts receivable and Interagency payables related to State
University capital projects on State University owned property £ _35811.830
Unearned interest income on accounts receivable related to State
University capital projects on State University owned property 516,794,697
Contractor accounts payable related to State University capital
projects on State University owned property §__5.440.796
Unrealized gains (loss) on investment securities $ 7,602,574
Unamortized bond premium related to bonds refunded $ 1824639
Accrued interest related to bonds refunded 32536436
Interagency payables related to bonds refunded 5 791,024
Deposit

On March 1, 2013, the Authority entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement to acquire the real estate,
personal property and improvements at 31, 35 and 37 Salem End Road, 75 and 89 Maynard Road, and 1060
Worcester Road, all in Framingham, Massachusetts, for a contract sales price of $6,600,000. In accordance
with the Purchase and Sale Agreement, the Authority deposited $200,000 in earnest money which is being
held in escrow until closing. Management expects the closing to occur on September 30, 2013.

Transfers from State Universities

In July, 2008, the Authority entered into a four party letter-agreement with the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts’ Division of Capital Asset Management (DCAM), the Department of Higher Education
(DHE) and Framingham State University (Framingham). The agreement, among other matters, calls for the
repositioning of O’Connor Hall on the Framingham Campus from its current use as a residence hall to an
academic/faculty/student activity support facility by the beginning of the Fall 2015 academic semester.
During fiscal 2012, the Authority received $2,400,000 from DCAM on behalf of Framingham in
accordance with the agreement. The agreement was amended during fiscal 2012 to provide for an additional
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17.

18.

MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY
(a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Transfers from State Universities - continued

$400,000 to be received by the Authority directly from Framingham in fiscal 2013. The Authority
determined during fiscal 2013 that the additional $400,000 of funding to be received directly from
Framingham was no longer needed and accordingly, no additional funds related to this agreement were
collected.

In March, 2013, the Authority entered into a funding agreement with Worcester State University
(Worcester) related to the Authority’s issuance of its Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2012C for the purpose,
in part, of constructing a new dormitory, including a dining facility on Worcester’s campus (Sheehan Hall).
The agreement, among other matters, identifies Worcester’s desire to increase the capacity of the dining
facility in Sheehan Hall to meet the needs of the entire campus. As such, Worcester has agreed to provide
supplemental funding up to a maximum amount of $7,000,000 to fund the costs of such increase in
capacity. During fiscal 2013, the Authority received $2,500,000 from Worcester in accordance with the
agreement. The agreement calls for an additional $2,500,000 of funding to be paid by Worcester in fiscal
2014 and the final funding portion of $2,000,000 to be received by the Authority from Worcester in fiscal
2015.

In addition, transfers from State Universities received in the ordinary course of business totaled $1,481,309
and $650,414 for fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Miscellaneous nonoperating revenue

As further discussed in Note 7, the Authority recorded $525,000 of income in 2012 for the receipt of a
termination payment associated with the termination of a portion of the original Series 2005A debt service
reserve fund investment agreement. The termination event resulted from the issuance of the 2012B
Refunding Bonds which refunded a portion of the Series 2005A Bonds. The Authority recognized this
termination payment as miscellaneous nonoperating revenue in the accompanying 2012 statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board

Massachusetts State College Building Authority
Boston, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the
Massachusetts State College Building Authority (a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) (the
Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 24, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstalements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Eecoloni -fénpagl(.p

Boston, Massachusetts
September 24, 2013
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APPENDIX C

2013 Senior Management Compensation

Title Annual Salary 2013
Executive Director 208,667
Deputy Director 150,698
Chief Financial Officer 144,612

Annual Report — Fiscal Year 2013
Massachusetts State College Building Authority
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